A

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Agenda

www.oxford.gov.uk

Planning Review Committee

Date: Thursday 2 June 2011

Time: 5.00 pm

Place:  The Old Library, Town Hall

For any further information please contact:
Lois Stock, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone: 01865 252275

Email: Istock@oxford.gov.uk




Planning Review Committee

Membership

Chair
Vice-Chair

Councillor Mohammed Altaf-Khan
Councillor Alan Armitage
Councillor Antonia Bance
Councillor Laurence Baxter
Councillor Tony Brett

Councillor Mark Lygo

Councillor Mike Rowley
Councillor Ed Turner

Councillor Nuala Young

Headington Hill and Northway;
North;

Rose Hill and Iffley;

Quarry and Risinghurst;
Carfax;

Churchill;

Barton and Sandhills;

Rose Hill and Iffley;

St Clement's;

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement.
Paper copies may be looked at in our Town Hall and Ramsay House (St. Ebbe's Street) reception

areas and at public libraries.

A copy of the agenda may be:-

- Viewed on our website - www.oxford.gov.uk/councilmeetings

- Downloaded from our website

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at www.oxford.gov.uk/ebulletins
- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription.

Subscription charges can be found online at www.oxford.gov.uk/agendacharges




OXFORD CITY COUNCIL 2 JUNE 2011

AGENDA
Pages

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2011/2012
2 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2011/2012
3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors serving on the Committee are asked to declare any personal or

prejudicial interests they may have in any of the following agenda items.
5 11/00242/CT3 - NEW SWIMMING POOL, PEGASUS ROAD, BLACKBIRD 1-32

LEYS, OXFORD.
Report of the Head of City Development is attached.
6 DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS.

Meetings are currently scheduled for the following dates:-

29" June 2011

27" July 2011

31% August 2011
28" September 2011
26™ October 2011
30™ November 2011
22" December 2011
25" January 2012
29" February 2012
28" March 2012
25™ April 2012

The Committee is also asked to consider its starting time. Last year,
meetings of SDCC began at 5pm.




DECLARING INTERESTS

What is a personal interest?

You have a personal interest in a matter if that matter affects the well-being or financial position of you, your
relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association more than it would affect the majority of

other people in the ward(s) to which the matter relates.

A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association
positively or negatively. If you or they would stand to lose by the decision, you should also declare it.

You also have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to any interests, which you must register.
What do | need to do if | have a personal interest?

You must declare it when you get to the item on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you. You may still speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest.

If a matter affects a body to which you have been appointed by the authority, or a body exercising functions of
a public nature, you only need declare the interest if you are going to speak on the matter.

What is a prejudicial interest?
You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if;

a) a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your personal interest
is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest; and

b) the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a licensing or regulatory matter; and
c) the interest does not fall within one of the exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of the Code of
Conduct.

What do | need to do if | have a prejudicial interest?

If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw from the meeting. However, under paragraph 12(2) of the
Code of Conduct, if members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or answer
questions about that matter, you may also make representations as if you were a member of the public.
However, you must withdraw from the meeting once you have made your representations and before any
debate starts.



Code of practice for dealing with planning applications at Committee meetings

Planning controls the development and use of land in the public interest. Applications must be
determined in accordance with the Council's development plans unless material planning
considerations indicate otherwise. The Committee must be conducted in an orderly, fair and
impartial manner.

The following minimum standards of practice will be followed: -

1.

All Members will have pre-read the officers’ report. Members are also encouraged to view
any supporting material.

The sequence for each application shall be as follows:-

(a) The Planning Officer will introduce;

(b) Any objectors may speak for up to 5 minutes in total;
(d) Any supporters may speak for up to 5 minutes in total;

(e) Speaking times may be extended by the Chair provided that equal time is given to both
sides

(f)  Members of the Committee may ask questions (which shall be directed via the Chair to
the relevant Officer or speaker);

() Members will debate and determine the application.

Members of the public wishing to speak must complete a “Speaker’s form” and hand it to the
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting commences or alternatively you can e-mail
Istock@oxford.qov.uk before 10.00 am on the day of the meeting, giving details of the your
name, the application/agenda item you wish to speak on and whether you are objecting to or
supporting the application. No additional documents that were not published as part of the
agenda may be referred to.

All representations should be heard in silence and without interruption. The Chair should
discourage disruptive behaviour. Members of the public are reminded that if the meeting is
not allowed to proceed in an orderly manner then the Chair will withdraw the opportunity to
address the Committee. The Committee is a meeting held in public, not a public meeting.
Members should not:-

(a) Rely on considerations which are not, in law, material;

(b) Question the personal integrity or professionalism of officers in public;

(c) Proceed to a vote if minded to determine an application against the officer’s
recommendation until the reasons for that determination have been formulated.

(d) Seek to re-design, or negotiate amendments to, an application (but the Committee may
impose appropriate conditions).






Agenda Iltem 5

Planning Review Committee 2" June 2011

Application 11/00242/CT3
Number:

Decision Due by: 21st April 2011

Proposal: Extension to existing Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre to
provide 25m swimming pool, learner and fun pools
and ancillary facilities. Alterations to existing leisure
centre including new entrance, plus external works
including landscaping and alterations to existing car
parking to provide 121 spaces and 50 cycle spaces.
(Additional Information)

Site Address: Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre (site plan: appendix
1)

Ward: Blackbird Leys Ward

Agent: Deloitte LLP (Trading As Applicant: Oxford City Council
Drivers Jonas Deloitte)

At the Strategic Development Control Committee meeting on the 28™ April
2011, Members resolved to support the application, subject to the completion
of a legal agreement securing highway improvements, and appropriate
conditions.

The application was subsequently called-in to the Planning Review
Committee by Councillors Goddard, Brown, Jones, Wilkinson, Mills,
Campbell, Fooks, Brundin, Armitage, Brett, Wolff, Benjamin, and Morton on
grounds of non-conformity with PPS1 and PPS4, and the need for fuller
consideration of the conditions that might be applied to any permission.

This cover report will provide further clarification of these matters and should
be read in conjunction with the officer’s report dated 12" April 2011 attached
as appendix 2

PPS1: Delivering Sustainable Development

1. PPS1 identifies Sustainable Development as the core principle
underpinning planning, and states that this is achieved through facilitating
and promoting sustainable and inclusive patterns of development through
the efficient use of resources; good high quality design; and taking account
of climate change over the lifetime of the development. It also states that



leisure uses should be located in sustainable locations that are accessible
for the community in order to encourage social cohesion and sustainable
economic development.

2. As set out within paragraph 12 of the officers report (appendix 2), the
Oxford Core Strategy 2026 is the overarching document that sets out the
spatial planning framework for Oxford up to 2026. This was adopted in
March 2011 and is consistent with current national planning policy such as
PPS1.

3. The Core Strategy 2026 acknowledges that despite the Oxford Indoor
Facilities Study finding that the current swimming pool and sports hall
provision within the city exceeds calculated demand, the potential for a
competition size swimming pool would be investigated over the life of the
plan, and this will preferably be located within the south of the city.

4. Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy encourages development that improves
existing indoor and outdoor sports facilities. The proposal would make an
efficient use of an existing resource while enhancing the recreational
facilities within the existing leisure centre, and meeting the strategic aim to
provide an improved competition standard pool for the south east of
Oxford and wider area. The existing leisure centre to which the pool would
be an extension is also located within the Blackbird Leys District Centre
which Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy identifies as being a sustainable
and accessible location, which should be the focal point of social and
community activities such as leisure uses. It is also part of the Blackbird
Leys Regeneration Area, whereby Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy
recognises improvements to leisure provision as a key part of
regeneration.

5. The proposed development has been designed to a high standard both in
terms of its internal and external appearance, but also in terms of
environmental improvements to the wider area. Furthermore in
accordance with Policy CP18 of the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016 a
Natural Resource Impact Analysis has been included with the application
demonstrating that the building would be highly energy efficient generating
a minimum of 20% of energy used within the building, through a combined
heat and power system and biomass boiler; a 5% improvement on the
minimum requirements of part L of the building regulations; and also being
highly efficient in terms of water resources.

6. Therefore for the reasons set out above, officers consider that on its own
merits the proposal would be consistent with the aims and objectives of
PPS1 and the current development plan policies of the Oxford Core
Strategy 2026 and the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016.

PPS4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth

7. A statement was submitted with the application which in accordance with
PPS4 included a sequential and impact assessment for the proposed



competition pool.

The sequential test focussed on the availability, suitability, and viability of
sites within the following centres — City Centre, Cowley District Centre, and
Blackbird Leys District Centre — that were large enough (greater than
0.5ha) to accommodate a competition pool and the necessary external
infrastructure to determine whether there were any sequentially preferable
sites for the proposed development.

The sequential test identified a total of 16 sites within these centres that
met the search criteria. A list of the sites can be found in appendix 3 of
this report, and were assessed in accordance with the advice contained
within the PPS4 practice guidance. The sites were discounted as they
were unsuitable, unavailable, and/or not viable for the proposed new pool
use and as a result no sequentially preferable sites to the application site
were found to accommodate the proposed development.

10.The PPS4 statement also included an impact assessment for the proposal

11.

which assessed the impacts of the proposal upon the catchment area; the
economic and regeneration impacts; and other impact considerations such
as whether the development was of an appropriate scale, whether it
planned for climate change, accessibility, and is of a high quality inclusive
design.

The assessment concluded that the proposal would not have any
significant impacts, but would instead help deliver a number of important
economic, regeneration and community benefits to the local area, which
has been identified within the Oxford Core Strategy 2026 as one of the
priority regeneration areas within the city. It would also be acceptable in
terms of the other impacts identified within PPS4 such as sustainability,
design, scale, and accessibility.

12. Therefore officers consider that the general principle of development

would meet the aims and objectives of national planning policy in the form
of PPS4 and the current development plan policies of the Oxford Core
Strategy 2026 and the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016.

Conditions

13.The officer's report sets out the suggested conditions for the proposed

development, and Members of the Strategic Development Control
Committee also resolved to add a separate condition requiring a
management plan to be provided for the pool. Officers would make no
further suggestions in relation to conditions.

Contact Officer: Andrew Murdoch
Extension: 2228
Date: 12th April 2011



Appendix 1 ool
C
Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre coéiﬁu

Blackbird Leys Park

i e LKm S T e [

Organisation Oxford City Council

Departmer/xt Planning Control
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Comments
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2010.

Date 24 March 2011
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to S e ;
prosecution or civil proceedings. SLA Number e 100019348 e




Appendix 2

Strategic Development Control Committee 28™M April 2011

Application 11/00242/CT3
Number:

Decision Due by: 21st April 2011

Proposal: Extension to existing Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre to
provide 25m swimming pool, learner and fun pools
and ancillary facilities. Alterations to existing leisure
centre including new entrance, plus external works
including landscaping and alterations to existing car
parking to provide 121 spaces and 50 cycle spaces.
(Additional Information)

Site Address: Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre (site plan: appendix
1)

Ward: Blackbird Leys Ward

Agent: Deloitte LLP (Trading As Applicant: Oxford City Council
Drivers Jonas Deloitte)

This cover report should be read in conjunction with the officer’'s report dated
23" March 2011 attached as appendix 2

14.At the South East Area Committee meeting on the 4™ April 2011, Members
resolved to support the application, subject to the following comments being
taken into account.

(a) The materials used on the exterior of the building should be specified in
order to produce a more interesting appearance,;

(b) There should be conditions attached to the Section 106 highway
contributions requiring them to be spent in the local area and especially
on parking facilities for residents;

(c) The line of the new building should be moved back in order to bring it in
line with the existing structure;

(d) SDCC was asked to request a management plan that would govern the
opening hours of the facility , whether or not it would be a licensed
premises (which the Area Committee did not favour), and the amount



of time that the general public could expect the new pool to be open to
them for their use;

(e) Concern remained about traffic congestion in the vicinity. Where
possible, any negative impact upon Pegasus Road should be
ameliorated.

15.The applicant has provided a brief report which provides a response to the
items identified by the South East Area Committee. The details of this
report are summarised below.

Materials

16.The proposed building will comprise three core materials, a standing seam
aluminium roof system, timber cladding, and curtain wall glazing. An area
of render will be used at the rear of the building.

17.The roof system will employ a standing seam aluminium roof, the colour of
which will be agreed with officers. The preference is for a mid-grey tone to
be used as this will weather better than a lighter tone. The mid-grey option
would be lighter than the tone shown on the proposed elevations.

18.The timber cladding would be used at the ends of the building to provide
interest to these facades. It is proposed to use a western red cedar which
will give the building a natural appearance, and will weather to a silver grey
over time.

19.The curtain walling will be clear double glazing which will have a seamless
appearance, and be employed in the Pegasus Road elevation to give the
impression that the building floats above the embankment. Above this
horizontal band of glazing, four further glazed elements rise vertically and
extend into roof lights

20. Officers consider that the proposed materials will provide the building with
an interesting appearance especially in comparison to the existing leisure
centre building. The materials used within the scheme could be
appropriately secured by condition.

Siting of the Building

21.The pool building has been positioned slightly forward of the existing leisure
building in order to reinforce the new entrance to this new public facility.
This allows views into the pool hall from the approach, and better circulation
between the wet and dry leisure facilities, café, and spectator areas. The
position of the building also allows for better servicing arrangements at the
rear.

22.The pool building would only be sited approximately 3.2m forward of the
existing leisure centre and its entrance. As stated in the officers report
(appendix 2) there is considerable separation distance between the



building and the nearest property on the southern side of Pegasus Road.
The terraced rows of these properties are angled away from the road
frontage, and separated by grass verges with mature trees within.

23.Therefore officers consider that the position of the building would be unlikely
to have a significant impact upon the amenities of these properties in terms
of overbearing impact and loss of light. However realigning the building
albeit by a marginal amount would have more significant impact on the
internal arrangements for the centre, in terms of reducing the views into the
pool hall from the entrance, the relationship of the dry and wet facilities, and
also servicing, and overall budget costs for the project.

Management Plan

24.A management plan for the facility could be secured by an appropriately
worded condition, and this could cover opening hours, public availability for
the swimming pool, licensing arrangements, and traffic management on
competition days.

25.The opening hours would be the same as the existing leisure centre (6am-
10pm Mon-FrilWeekends/Bank Holidays), and although a timetable for use
of the pool is yet to be developed it is not intended to restrict access for the
public at anytime wherever possible, while also catering for particular
groups such as women’s only sessions.

26.This plan would also include traffic and car parking management
arrangements on competition days, in order to minimise any impact on the
surrounding road network such as Pegasus Road.

Highways Contributions

27.The Local Highways Authority has requested £192,850 towards highway
and traffic management improvements within the local area.

28.The applicant would fully support the principle of spending these
contributions within the local area, and has tabled a list of highway works
with the Local Highways Authority for discussion. These include removal
and upgrade of the traffic calming scheme on Pegasus Road; speed
detection and display signage; additional on-street residential car parking;
bus stop improvements including real-time display; and other works.

29.The Local Highways Authority is yet to agree the scope of these works, but
accept the general principle of the contributions being applied to the local
area and therefore the matter could be discussed further while the legal
agreement is being completed.

Matters of Clarification

30.In the interests of clarity, Officers would advise Members that the number of
existing and proposed car parking spaces as specified within the committee



report (appendix 2) should be corrected. The number of existing car
parking spaces are 78 (including 5 disabled) whereas the proposal would
provide 121 spaces (including 7 disabled spaces).

Contact Officer: Andrew Murdoch
Extension: 2228
Date: 12th April 2011



South East Area Committee 4™ April 2011

Strategic Development Control Committee 28™ April 2011

Application 11/00242/CT3
Number:

Decision Due by: 21st April 2011

Proposal: Extension to existing Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre to
provide 25m swimming pool, learner and fun pool and
ancillary facilities. Alterations to existing leisure centre
including new entrance, plus external works including
landscaping and alterations to existing car parking to
provide 121 spaces and 50 cycle spaces.

Site Address: Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre (Site Plan: Appendix
1)

Ward: Blackbird Leys Ward

Agent: Deloitte LLP (Trading As Applicant: Oxford City Council
Drivers Jonas Deloitte)

Recommendation:

1. The South East Area Committee is recommended to support the proposal
subject to the completion of a legal agreement in the terms outlined below,
and appropriate conditions

2. The Strategic Development Control Committee is recommended to grant
planning permission subject to the completion of a legal agreement in the
terms outlined below, and appropriate conditions

Reasons for Approval:

1 The proposed competition pool would represent a wholly appropriate
use within the Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre, which is considered to be
a sustainable location, and would meet the strategic regeneration aims
within the Oxford Core Strategy 2026. The extension to the existing
leisure centre would represent an efficient use of land, enhancing this
existing indoor sports facility and providing a number of environmental
improvements that would improve the quality of the existing open-air
sports facility and surrounding public realm without causing any undue
disturbance to local residents. The size, scale, siting, and design of the
pool building would be well integrated with the existing centre and



surrounding area, while safeguarding the residential amenities of the
surrounding properties within Pegasus Road. The proposed
development would not have a significant impact upon the local
highway network and would provide adequate car parking and cycle
parking for all users of the leisure centre. The proposal would not have
a detrimental impact upon flood risk, archaeological, or sustainability
matters. The proposed development would therefore accord with the
relevant policies of the Oxford Core Strategy 2026, and the Oxford
Local Plan 2001-2016.

2 In considering the application, officers have had specific regard to all
the comments of third parties and statutory bodies in relation to the
application however officers consider that these comments have not
raised any material considerations that would warrant refusal of the
applications, and any harm identified could be successfully mitigated
by appropriately worded conditions.

3 The Council considers that the proposal accords with the policies of the
development plan as summarised below. It has taken into
consideration all other material matters, including matters raised in
response to consultation and publicity. Any material harm that the
development would otherwise give rise to can be offset by the
conditions imposed.

Conditions:

1 Development begun within time limit

2 Develop in accordance with approved plans

3 Samples of materials

4 Landscape plan required — including external lighting / CCTV

5 Landscape hard surface design - tree roots

6 Landscape underground services - tree roots

7 Tree Protection Plan (TPP) 1

8 Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) 1

9 Ecological Mitigation Measures

10 Archaeology - mitigation

11 Full Travel Plan

12 Construction Traffic Management Plan

13 Details of Parking Area

14 Details of Cycle Parking

15 Widening of vehicular access

16 Noise Limits

17 Details of scheme for cooking odours

18 NRIA Measures

19 Details of Flood Risk Assessment carried out

20 Sustainable Urban Drainage Scheme

21 No infiltration of Surface Water Drainage

22 Remediation strategy for Contaminated Land

23 Details of Public Art

10



S106 Legal Agreement:
e £192,850 towards highway and traffic management improvements in the
area

Main Local Plan Policies:

Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016

CP1 - Development Proposals

CP6 - Efficient Use of Land & Density

CP8 - Design Development to Relate to its Context
CP9 - Creating Successful New Places

CP10 - Siting Development to Meet Functional Needs
CP11 - Landscape Design

CP13 - Accessibility

CP14 - Public Art

CP15 - Energy Efficiency

CP18 - Natural Resource Impact Analysis

CP19 - Nuisance

CP20 - Lighting

CP21 - Noise

TR1 - Transport Assessment

TR2 - Travel Plans

TR3 - Car Parking Standards

TR4 - Pedestrian & Cycle Facilities

NE15 - Loss of Trees and Hedgerows

HE2 - Archaeology

HS19 — Privacy and Amenity

SR2 - Protection of Open Air Sports Facilities
DS10 - Blackbird Leys Road - Regeneration Zone

Oxford Core Strategy 2026 — Adopted Version

CS1 - Hierarchy of Centres

CS3_ - Regeneration areas

CS9_ - Energy and natural resources

CS11_ - Flooding

CS13_ - Supporting access to new development

CS17_ - Infrastructure and developer contributions

CS18_ - Urban design, town character, historic environment
CS19_ - Community safety

CS21_ - Green spaces, leisure and sport

Other Material Considerations:

PPS1: Delivering Sustainable Development

PPS4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth

PPG13: Transport

PPG17: Planning for Open space, Sport, and Recreation

PPS25: Development and Flood Risk

Natural Resource Impact Analysis Supplementary Planning Document
Parking Standards, Transport Assessment, and Travel Plans
Supplementary Planning Document

11



¢ Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document
Relevant Site History:

68/21021/A_H - Erection of a sports hall for educational and public use at
Redefield School: Approved

83/00036/NF - Extension to existing building to form training hall: Approved

81/00514/GF - Adjacent to Redefield Sports Hall Pegasus Road - Change of
use of part of school playing field to adventure playground and erection of
building to serve as an indoor facility: Withdrawn

81/00713/GF - Change of use of part of school playing field to adventure
playground and erection of building to serve as an indoor facility (revised):
Withdrawn

87/00010/GF - Demolition of single storey ancillary buildings to sports hall and
erection of two storey extension: Deemed Consent

04/01888/CT3 - Extension to Leisure Centre: Deemed Consent

05/02245/CT3 - Extension and alterations to leisure centre, external
condensers (x10). (Variation to permission 04/01888/CT3): Approved

10/00325/CT3 - Refurbishment of existing main entrance including the re-
modelling of the entrance doors. Insertion of 5 opening roof lights in the
entrance/reception area to replace 5 existing non-opening roof lights:
Approved

Representations Received:
Letters of comment have been received from the following addresses, these
comments are summarised below.

108, 114, 122, 134, 136, 138, 140, 142 152, 154, 162, 315 Pegasus Road; 3
Crescent Close; 34, 67 Crescent Road; 7a Littlehay Road; 20 Long ground;
Flat 24 Potters Court; 8 St Christopher’s Place; 33 Coltsfoot Square; 43, 45
Dene Road; 20 Tawney Street; 20 Wilkins Road; 72 Gidley Way, Horspath;
140A Oxford Road, 341 Meadow Lane, 128 Church Road; 88, 90 Temple
Road; Room 2E Block B Paul Kent Hall; 40 Butts Road, Horspath; 7 Whitson
Place; 43 Courtland Road; 13 Parsons Place; 396 Woodstock Road; 173
Morrell Avenue; 37 Kirk Close

Loss of Temple Cowley Pool / Blackbird Leys Pool

e This proposal results in the loss of Temple Cowley Pools and Fitness
Centre and Blackbird Leys Pool

e The health of a number of users of Temple Cowley Pool will be affected by
its removal

e The loss of Temple Cowley Pool will result in the loss of a community
facility which will be contrary to Policies CS21 of the Core Strategy and

12



Policy SR1 of the Local Plan

The loss of Temple Cowley Pool will reduce the support and demand for
development in Between Towns Road which would not enable to Council
to satisfy Policy DS8 of the Local Plan

There are a number of complimentary facilities next to Temple Cowley
Pool which Blackbird Leys does not offer such as library, doctors’ surgery,
national records office and alternative health centre.

The Blackbird Leys Swimming Pool offered free swimming to the elderly,
and is small and offers privacy

The decision to close Temple Cowley Pools represents an infringement of
Human Rights

There has not been sufficient consultation with the Oxford 50+ network as
to their needs and requirements

General Matters

The pool would not be in a sustainable location or more sustainable than
Temple Cowley Pool and therefore does not meet the Councils
commitment to reducing the need to travel (Policy CP3, CP10(a) of the
Local Plan and Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy)

The strategic selection of the site has not been implemented through a
sequential strategy, as Temple Cowley Pool has been excluded and this is
on the edge of the Cowley Centre which is a district centre designated
above Blackbird Leys

The proposal would not make good use of the land

The pool may be located in an area of deprivation, but would be better
placed where people from a number of other areas could access it

The proposed site would not be in the Blackbird Leys Regeneration Zone
(Policy DS10)

The proposal will result in the loss of green space from the park

The increased traffic will cause light disturbance, pollution, and impact on
air quality for local residents

The pool should be sited on the opposite side of the playing fields where
there are no residential properties

The proposal will result in the loss of trees and increase flood risk

The pool will be directly in front of the Pegasus Road properties which will
cause a lack of privacy and loss of light

The new building will be an eyesore for residents on Pegasus Road

The scheme will provide competitive swimming meaning that local people
will have limited access to the facility.

The new pool will not give enough sessions to ‘women only’ swimming and
the proposed blinds will not provide enough privacy.

There will not be enough privacy in the changing rooms.

The pool will be colder than the Blackbird Leys and Temple Cowley Pool
There will not be a diving pool within the building, and so the one at
Temple Cowley will be lost

The pool will not cater for the Muslim community due to the lack of privacy
in the changing rooms

13



Transport Matters

¢ The pool is designed for competitive swimming and this will increase traffic
generation in the area

e The general use of the pool will generate up to 1,000 visits per week in
and out of the estate, whilst some will walk or cycle, most will travel by car
which will increase the volume of traffic in this residential area making
access to the new pool and estate difficult

e Oxford already suffers from congestion and any development that
encourages significant trips by car or bus should be refused unless there
is a transport plan that takes into account future proposed development.
There is not enough car parking within the site

¢ The site will be difficult to access for those without cars and not on a direct
bus route

e The site is not well served by public transport as there are only two bus
services and therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy SR3

e The transport and travel plans are inadequate as they make no provision
for Temple Cowley users

e There are no plans to improve road access, access for cyclists and
pedestrians and to ensure better public transport services.

e The cycle paths to Blackbird Leys are unnerving to cyclists and the stands
at the leisure centre are not highly accessible

e The Travel Plan for the site does not have clear objectives, targets or a
monitoring or review procedure contrary Policy TR2 of the Local Plan

Statutory and Internal Consultees:
Sport England: No objection to the application subject to the condition that the

development is carried out as proposed with the provision of a 25m eight lane
swimming pool

Oxfordshire County Highways Authority: No objection in principle — see
Highway Matters section.

Environment Agency: No objections to the proposal subject to the condition
that the development is carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk
Assessment by Curtins Consulting; a sustainable urban drainage system for
the development is provided; no infiltration of surface water drainage into
ground is permitted without prior approval; remediation for any unsuspected
contamination.

Thames Water Utilities Limited: No objection to the proposal

Oxford Access Planning Group: A loop system should be provided at
reception

Community Engagement:
A Consultation Statement prepared by Drivers Jonas Deloitte setting out the

community engagement that has been undertaken prior to the submission of the
application. The consultation consisted of a number of different elements:

14



A city wide survey

Public open sessions;

Focus groups; and

Design boards and comment cards

This was promoted through various forms of media such as the Oxford City
Council website; several Press releases; coverage in the Oxford Mail and on
radio and television; posters to community centres, surgeries, libraries and sports
centres; direct emails; and key groups such as the Community Sports Network.

According to the statement the majority of the feedback from consultation has
been positive towards the proposal, and issues raised have been fed into the
design process.

Issues:

Principle of Development

Improvements to Indoor Sports Facility
Visual Impact

Impact upon adjoining properties
Highway Matters

Trees

Flood Risk

Sustainability

Archaeology

Public Art / Environmental Improvements

Officers Assessment:

Site Location and Description:

1.

The site is located on the northern side of Pegasus Road, and is bordered
by the Oxford and Cherwell Valley College to the north-west, the playing
fields of open air sports facility and Blackbird Leys Park to the north and
east, and Evenlode Tower to the west. The site is within a predominately
residential area, with the properties situated on the southern side of
Pegasus Road facing the site (site plan: appendix 1).

The site comprises the Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre which includes a
multi-use sports hall, gym, exercise studios, spin studio, créche, and café.
The centre has undergone various refurbishment works in recent years.

The site is accessed via the Pegasus Road with a car park located to the
west of the multi-use sports hall which has 89 spaces including a small
area for disabled parking. There is also cycle parking of 30 spaces and
pedestrian access to the facility along the frontage.

15



Proposal:

4.

The proposed development would provide a new competition standard
swimming pool as an extension to the existing leisure centre. The works
would include the following

The creation of a new swimming pool building of approx 2,530m?
comprising a 25m competition pool with moveable floor, together with
spectator seating, wet changing facilities, separate fun pool and learner
pool, plant room and the creation of a foyer linking the pool building to the
existing centre.

The reconfiguration of the existing Leisure Centre building, including
internal alterations to the entrance and reconfiguration of spaces.

The layout of the car park would be altered to provide 128 parking spaces
(including 7 disabled spaces), while the existing vehicular access onto
Pegasus Road would be widened. There would also be 50 cycle parking
spaces provided along the frontage.

Other works include new and enhanced site infrastructure including a sub-
station, lighting, servicing and maintenance routes around the building,
underground biomass waste storage facility, an underground attenuation
tank for the pool; and the removal of a number of trees along the Pegasus
Road frontage.

Blackbird Leys Pool / Temple Cowley Pool

9.

During the statutory consultation process a number of representations
have been made regarding the impact of the proposal upon Temple
Cowley Pool and Blackbird Leys Pool.

10. 1t should be recognised that the Council’s planning functions and property

management functions are distinct and separate. The planning application
before the Committee is for a new pool at Blackbird Leys and should be
assessed purely on its own planning merits. Any comments received,
regarding Temple Cowley pool and its possible closure, are not relevant in
relation to this application and should not be considered when determining
the application.

Principle of Development

11.In terms of national planning policy, both PPS1: Delivering Sustainable

Development and PPG17: Planning for Open Space, Sport, and
Recreation encourage leisure facilities to be located in suitable locations
that are accessible for the community. While PPS4: Planning for
Sustainable Economic Development states that leisure uses should be
directed to existing centres, with the aim of offering a wide range of
services to communities and make provision in areas with poor access to
facilities.

16



12.The adopted Oxford Core Strategy 2026 is the overarching document that
sets out the spatial planning framework for Oxford up to 2026. According
to this document the site is located on the edge of the Blackbird Leys
District Centre and Regeneration Area, with the existing leisure centre
located within their boundaries.

13.The Core Strategy identifies the Blackbird Leys District Centre as a mixed-
use centre, which will have a different character to other established
centres, in order to act as a catalyst and focal point for regeneration and
the community. It is considered to be a sustainable location well served by
public transport to the city centre, via Cowley Centre, and easily
accessible by walking or bicycle from the surrounding residential area. In
particular, Policy CS1 acknowledges that these centres are appropriate
locations for a number of uses, including leisure.

14.More importantly Policy CS3 identifies Blackbird Leys as one of the five
priority areas for regeneration within the City. The preamble to this policy
sets out the strategy for this regeneration, and identifies improvements to
sports and leisure facilities, including a swimming pool as one of the more
specific aims.

15.1n accordance with PPS4, a sequential test and impact assessment for the
site has been provided by Drivers Jonas Deloitte. The assessment
suggests that the pool will serve the local area but also have wider appeal
serving the entire City. The sequential test has been undertaken for the
City centre, Cowley Primary District Centre and Blackbird Leys District
Centre, and the approach adopted would accord with the guidance in
PPS4 although it is acknowledged that this was carried out prior to the
adoption of the Core Strategy.

16.The statement concludes that there are no sequentially preferable sites
that could be used to accommodate the proposed development, and that
the location will not have a significant impact upon any of the centres
assessed and respects all other criteria identified in PPS4 such as those
relating sustainability, design, scale, and accessibility.

17.1n light of the above, it is clear that the proposed development would help
deliver a number of important regeneration and community benefits to the
local area, which would be consistent with the aims and objectives PPS1,
PPS4, and PPG17 and the strategic objectives of Policies CS1 and CS3 of
the Oxford Core Strategy 2026

Improvements to Indoor Sports Facility
18.The proposal seeks to provide a 25m competition pool with moveable
floor, together with spectator seating, wet changing facilities, separate fun

pool and learner pool, as an extension to the existing Blackbird Leys
Leisure Centre.

17



19.In terms of indoor sports, Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy acknowledges
that improvements to indoor and outdoor sports facilities will be sought in
accordance with Policy CS17 which covers infrastructure and developer
contributions. The Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016 makes clear in Policy
CP6 that development proposals should make an efficient use of land,
while Policy SR2 states that permission will not be granted for
development proposals that result in the loss of open-air sports facilities.

20.The Planning Statement prepared by Drivers Jonas Deloitte indicates that
the Council carried out a review of leisure facilities in May 2009, which
identified that there were no pool facilities which met modern competition
standards within the City. The Oxford Core Strategy 2026 acknowledges
that the potential for a competition size swimming pool will be investigated,
and this will preferably be at a site within the south of the city.

21.The proposed development would provide an improved pool for the people
of south east Oxford, as well as a competition standard pool for a wider
area. As an extension to the existing leisure centre it would make an
efficient use of land and also enhance the available recreational facilities
within the centre creating a synergy between the leisure centre, pool and
outdoor pitches. Although the extension would extend into part of the
playing fields which are designated as a protected open-air sports facility it
would not result in a significant loss of this space, and the number of
pitches within the space would be maintained through reorientation.

22.During the consultation process a number of concerns have been raised
relating to the operation of the pool and how it will disadvantage certain
users. The facility will include three types of pool (competition, fun pool,
and learner pool), and provide a balanced programme to ensure that all
user groups are catered for (i.e. general users, elite swimmers,
competitions, school groups, ethnic groups etc). The changing facilities
provided will include village changing, and separate group changing areas,
while full blackout blinds provided in order to provide privacy / seclusion in
the pool where necessary. Overall it has been designed to be a modern,
sustainable, and accessible facility that meets the standards of Sport
England, Building Regulations, and the Equalities Act.

23.Overall, officers consider that the proposed development would satisfy the
aims and objectives of Policies CS21 of the Oxford Core Strategy 2026,
and Policies CP6 and SR2 of the adopted Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016.

Visual Impact

24. The Oxford Core Strategy 2026, through Policy CS18 encourages
development to demonstrate high-quality urban design by responding to
the site and its surroundings; creating a strong sense of place; contributing
to an attractive public realm and providing high quality architecture. The
Local Plan supports these aims through Policy CP1 which requires new
development to enhance the overall quality of the environment, and CP8
which states that the siting, size, scale, and massing of development

18



should be integrated with the built form and grain of the area in which it is
sited.

25.The site is within the south-western corner of an area of Blackbird Leys
Park, within the centre of the estate. This part of the open space is
characterised by larger scale buildings such as the leisure centre, college
buildings, and Evenlode Tower, with smaller scale residential dwellings on
the opposite side of Pegasus Road that frame views from the open space.

26.The proposed building has been sited alongside the existing Leisure
Centre in order to address the street, provide a more legible entrance, and
better internal organisation of dry and wet activities. In terms of size,
scale, and design the building would have a simplistic form with its
monopitch roof that creates an appropriate visual relationship with the
existing Leisure Centre, while the clear glazed strip at its base, strip
windows within the frontage and use of glazing and timber cladding helps
to break up the buildings facades.

27.The size, scale and design of the proposed pool building would accord
with Policy CS18 of the Oxford Core Strategy 2026 and Policies CP1, and
CP8 of the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016.

Impact upon adjoining properties

28.Policy CP10 of the Local Plan requires development proposals to be sited
in a manner which meets functional need, but also in a manner that
safeguards the amenities of other properties. This is supported by Policy
HS19 which states that development proposals should not increase the
potential for overlooking into habitable rooms, noise intrusion, overbearing
impact, or loss of sunlight or daylight.

29.The residential properties on the opposite side of Pegasus Road would
stand to be most affected by the proposal. However given the separation
distance (approx 25m) that exists between them across a public space,
officers consider that the pool building would not have a material adverse
impact upon these properties in terms of loss of light, outlook or sense of
enclosure.

30.During the consultation process concerns have been raised that the
proposal would result in a loss of privacy to these properties. However
considering the dwellings currently front onto the public realm, it would be
difficult to suggest that the proposed building would give rise to any
increased overlooking of the frontages of these properties.

31.The Local Plan states in Policy CP19 that the permission will not be
granted for development that causes unacceptable nuisance, while Policy
CP20 requires development to reduce light pollution or light spillage while
Policy CP21 that permission will not be granted for developments that give
rise to unacceptable noise levels.

19



32.A noise survey and external lighting plan for the development has been
submitted by Hoare Lea Acoustics. The Oxford City Council
Environmental Health Department have raised no objection to these
details, subject to conditions which restrict noise levels and ensure the
lighting is provided as plan.

Highway Matters

33.The Oxford Core Strategy 2026 supports access to new development, and
in Policy CS13 states that permission will only be granted for development
that prioritises access by walking, cycling, and public transport. Policy
CP1 of the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016 states that development should
be acceptable in terms of access, parking, highway safety, traffic
generation, and pedestrian and cycle movements.

34.The Core Strategy identifies that the Blackbird Leys District Centre is a
sustainable location, with good access to public transport links to the city
via Cowley Centre, and accessible to a large number of local residents by
different modes of transport. Therefore the location of the site would
accord with the general aims of Policy CS13.

35.1n accordance with Policy TR1 of the Local Plan, a Transport Assessment
prepared by Curtins Consulting has been submitted with the application,
the scope of which was agreed with the Local Highways Authority prior to
submission.

36.In terms of traffic generation, the Transport Assessment concludes that the
proposed development would be likely to generate an average figure of 58
movements in the network peak hours. The Local Highways Authority
agree with this figure and are satisfied that having regard to the location of
the site, this amount of traffic can be accommodated on the local highway
network.

37.The Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document [POSPD]
identifies that for development proposals that generate significant levels of
additional traffic a contribution will be required towards highway and traffic
management improvements in the area. Having regard to the level of
traffic generation within the proposed scheme the level of contribution
sought by the POSPD in this case would be £192,850.

38.In accordance with Policy TR2 of the adopted Oxford Local Plan 2001-
2016, a travel plan has been submitted for the proposed development.
The details of this should be secured and agreed by condition.

39.The proposal would also include alterations to the existing car parking
area to provide 128 parking spaces (including 7 disabled spaces). The
number of parking spaces would be below the maximum parking
standards as set out in Appendix 3 of the Local Plan 2001-2016. However
the Transport Assessment submitted with the application indicates that the
current car park is under used, and the proposed level of parking would be

20



3 times the capacity of the current car park and takes into consideration
increased demand during competitions. The Local Highways Authority
have indicated that on the basis of this information, and given the good
accessibility of the site a reduction in the maximum parking standards
would be acceptable in this regard and would accord with Policy TR3 of
the Local Plan. The scheme also includes coach parking for 4 coaches for
competition events, which comprise a drop-off / pick-up lay-by and area for
two coaches to park. The Highways Authority has raised no objection to
this aspect of the proposal subject to a condition that this is provided. A
condition should be attached which requires the parking area to be laid out
prior to occupation, and that all areas employ a sustainable urban
drainage system etc.

40.The proposal would also include increasing the available cycle parking at
the centre from 30 spaces to 50. The Cycle Parking would accord with
standards as set out in Policy TR4 of the adopted Oxford Local Plan 2001-
2016 however a condition should be attached to ensure that these are
situated within shelters to encourage use.

41.In terms of highways matters, the proposal would accord with Policies
CS13 of the Oxford Core Strategy 2026, and Policies CP1, TR1, TR2,
TR3, and TR4 of the Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016.

Trees

42.The Arboricultural Report by TEP Consulting states that the proposed
development will require the removal of a Birch Tree from the entrance to
the centre, and 9 individual trees from the road frontage to Pegasus Road
(2x Atlantic Cedar; 2 Cherry Trees; 1 Crack Willow; 1 London Plan; 1
Norway Maple; and 2 Scots Pine).

43.The removal of the trees from Pegasus Road is regrettable as it would
have an impact upon the street scene. The proposal acknowledges this
by including new tree planting within the frontage in order to mitigate the
visual impact of removing these trees.

44.The Oxford City Council Tree Officer has indicated that although there will
be a residual loss of tree cover when the development is complete,
provided the replacement trees establish and grow successfully, they will
be better suited to the site than the existing Crack Willow. As the new
trees mature, they will enhance the proposed development softening the
appearance in public views along Pegasus Road. Therefore no objection
would be raised to the proposal under Policy CP11 and NE15 of the
adopted Oxford Local Plan 2001-2016.

45.1n order to ensure that sufficient space is provided for the new trees, a
condition should be attached which requires details of the planting
environment for the new trees. Further conditions should also be attached
requiring a landscape plan, details of all hard surfacing and underground
services, arboricultural method statement, and tree protection plan.

21



46. According to the Ecological Report by TEP, the proposed development will
not have a detrimental impact upon biodiversity and European Protected
Species. Officers agree a condition should be attached which ensure that
the mitigation measures within the report are implemented.

Flood Risk

47.The proposed extension would be sited within Flood Zone 1 (less than
0.1% chance of flooding in any year). A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) by
Curtins Consulting has been included with the application.

48.The Environment Agency is satisfied the development will not increase
fluvial flood risk, provided the measures set out within the FRA are
implemented in the development. This should be secured by condition,
along with further conditions requiring a surface water drainage scheme
for the site to be submitted, and remediation measures for any
contamination not previously identified.

Sustainability

49.A Natural Resource Impact Analysis (NRIA) has been submitted as
required by Policy CP18 of the Local Plan, and the NRIA Supplementary
Planning Document

50.The energy strategy for the building has been designed in order to
generate on site a minimum of 20% of energy used within the building.
The proposed scheme would incorporate a combined heat and power
(CHP) system, and a biomass boiler. The building is proposed to be
highly energy efficient, with the NRIA stating that it will be built to a
standard that achieves a 5% improvement on the minimum requirements
of the approved Building Regulations Part L 2010. This would be highly
commendable. The choice of materials within the building will feature 90%
FSC certified timber, as well as using a high proportion of recycled
aggregates. Where possible the materials will be locally sourced, although
this has not yet been assessed.

51.Water resources have also been considered and a range of water
efficiency measures have been considered including, the use of a pool
cover to reduce evaporation from the pool surface during closed periods.
Also each WC will have low flush volumes. Similarly, the showers have a
limited water consumption maximum. The NRIA scores well in terms of
water resources.

52.0Overall, the NRIA would achieve a score of 8/11 which would represent a
good solid performance. A condition should be attached to any permission
to ensure the details are included within the development.

Archaeology

22



53.This site is of interest because it is located between a north-south
concentration of Roman kilns, associated enclosures and trackway and the
Alchester-Dorchester Roman Road. The dispersed pottery manufacturing
sites orientated on this road form part of nationally important Roman
pottery industry that operated from the 1% to 4™ century, with Blackbird
Leys being an important focus for the expansion of the industry in the 2"
century. The industry in the Oxford region appears to have begun as a
cottage industry in the 1% century before rapidly expanding into a major
national industry by the later 3" and 4" centuries.

54.A desk based assessment and geophysical survey has been carried out to
assess the archaeological potential of the site. This has revealed that area
is disturbed with construction debris from the existing buildings, infilling
and levelling. A Roman Industrial site might include strong linear features
(ditches, trackways) and the outline of any kilns but the results do not
display these archaeological characteristics. These results do not provide
definitive evidence of the absence of archaeology and some control is
needed to mitigate the impacts of this proposal on any archaeology. This
can be managed by condition on any grant of planning permission.

Public Art / Environmental Improvements

55.The Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (POSPD)
identifies that contributions would be required from the scheme towards
the provision of public art and environmental improvements.

56.In terms of Public Art, the POSPD identifies that Public Art must be
incorporated within the development site, or be provided near to the
development. This could be a permanent or temporary work, inside or
outside a building, an integral part of a building or free-standing in an open
space.

57.Although public art has not been specifically detailed in the proposed
scheme, this could be provided and as such appropriately secured by
condition.

58.The POSPD also identifies that the Council will encourage new
development to enhance the quality of the public space around any
development. The proposed scheme includes a number of environmental
improvements such as a landscaping strategy for the site, which includes
new planting and an enhanced approach to the new entrance for the
building with high quality paving etc. The scheme will also include the
provision of street furniture such as benches and litter bins; cycle parking;
and improved external lighting of public areas and CCTV for surveillance.
Again these would be secured by condition.

23



Conclusion:

59.The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of the relevant
policies of the adopted Oxford Core Strategy 2026 and the Oxford Local
Plan 2001-2016 and therefore officer's recommendation to the Members of
the South East Area Committee and Strategic Development Control
Committee is to approve the development in principle, but defer the
application for the completion of a legal agreement to secure the
necessary financial contributions as set out above.

Human Rights Act 1998

Officers have considered the Human Rights Act 1998 (the Act) in reaching the
recommendation to grant planning permission, subject to conditions and a
legal agreement. Officers have considered the potential interference with the
rights of the owners/occupiers of surrounding properties in regard to all The
Articles in Schedule One of the Act. Officers consider that the only Articles
that may be relevant in this regard are Articles Eight of the Convention and
Article One of the First Protocol and Officers consider that any potential
interference with these rights caused by the granting of this planning
application is proportionate. Officers have also considered the potential
interference with the rights of other Oxford residents under the Act and
consider that either there will be no interference or that any interference with
their rights will be minimal and proportionate.

Officers have also considered the interference with the human rights of the
applicant under all the potentially relevant Articles of the Act that may occur
by imposing conditions. The only relevant Articles is Article One of the First
Protocol of the Act. Officers consider that the conditions are necessary to
protect the rights and freedoms of others and to control the use of property in
accordance with the general interest. Any interference is therefore justifiable
and proportionate.

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Officers have considered, with due regard, the likely effect of the proposal on
the need to reduce crime and disorder as part of the determination of this
application, in accordance with section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act
1998. In reaching a recommendation to grant planning permission, subject to
conditions and a legal agreement, officers consider that the proposal will not
undermine crime prevention or the promotion of community safety.

Contact Officer: Andrew Murdoch

Extension: 2228
Date: 23" March 2011

24



AP Penbix B

5 Results of the Sequential
Assessment

51 Introduction and Context

This section provides an assessment of the availability, suifability and viability of the
potential sequentially preferable sites listed in Tables 4.1a - ¢. Particutar attention is
paid to the Oxpens site in Oxford City Centre, which has been identified by the
Councll Planning Officet as the only reasonable more centrally located potential
alternative site for the proposed swimming pool.

In assessing site availability (and viability), an important consideration Is the
timescale within which a proposal is needed. As discussed in the supporting
planning statement, there is currently no modern compedition standard pool within
Oxford. This is viewed as significant deficiency in leisure provision and hence, there
is @ pressing need for the proposal. As such, sites whose availability is unduly
restricted through issues such as the need to relocate existing occuplers would
significantly impact on the necessary planned timing of the delivery of the new
facility.

The results of the sequential assessment are included in Tables &.1a to §.1c.
Further commentary in relation to the Oxpens site is included separately.

PPS 4 Statermnent 17

25

® © © © © © ® ® @ © © ¢ € © @ © ®© © O © O © ©® & O @ &6 © 6 0 6 O 6




® 006 ©6 0060000606000 @ ¢ 0000606 0 000 ¢ e 0 0 0

Biackb" Leys Regenetation Zone is cutrently
intensively developed and in use for a mix of
community, retail, education and other uses.

Oxford zad Cherwell Valley College & - " .
Blackbird Lays Library Sites allocated within the Biackbird Leys

Rageneration Zone where adopted Local Plan
Poiicy DS.10 identifies the area as suitable for  Site availability would be dependant o existing Discount on grounds of availability and viability
Blackbird Leys Community Centre, & range of commercial and community based  occupiers relocating and & comprehensive

Public House & Church uses, strategy being developed for the phased

regeneration of the area.

Table 5.1b: Sequential Assessment Resuits: Sites in Cowley District Centre

Adopted Local Plan Policy DS.18 allocates

the Cowley Centre {and Crowell Road car

3 Covdey Cenire park site) as suitable for retail-led
redeveloprment together with a range of other
district cenire type uses

The site is currently intensively developed for
predominantly retail use Site availability would
be dependant on existing occuplers relecating to
enable the sile 1 be redeveloped,

9¢

Discount on grounds of availability and viability

The site is currently intensively developed and in
use for a mix of uses by various occupiers, Site
avaitability would be depandant on existing
occupiers refocating to enable the site to be
redeveloped. Likely multiple ownership

Adopted Local Plan Policy D8.8 allocates this
site as suitable for small scale retail,
residential and health and childcare facilities
(leisure excluded}

Discount on grounds of suitability, availability
and viability

4 Between Towns Road

PPS 4 Statement 18




14043y

LC

5 Oxfotd Railway Station

Site identified in adopted West End Area -
Action Plan (Annex 2) as suitable for transport
and public space (leisure use excluded as 2
suitable use in Annex 2 of the A&P)

Current main rail station for the Cily. Key public
fransport facility to be maintained and enhanced
in existing location

Discount on grounds of suitability, avaiiability
and viability

Fire Station, Rewley Road and Beaver
House, Hythe Bridge Streat

o

Fire Station site identified in adopted West
End Area Action Plan {Annex 2) as suitable
for housing, office and selected community
uses (lelsure use excluded as 2 suitable use
in Annex 2 of the AAR),

Beaver House site identified in adopted West
Eng Area Action Plan (Annex 2) as suitable
for office use only (leisure use excluded 2s a
suitable use in Annex 2 of the AAP),

Fire Station site is In current active use. Sie
avalilebility would be dependart on existing
ocoupiers relocaling to enable the site to be
redeveloped.

Beaver House is a relatively modern building
which is part occupied. Availsble space is
currently being actively marketed ‘To Let. Site
availability would be dependant on existing
otoupiers relocating o enable the site 1o be
redeveloped,

Discount on grounds of suitability, avallability
and viability,

Island site (Park End St/ Hythe Bridge
Streef)

~¢

Site ideniilied in adopted West End Area
Action Plan {Annex 2) as suitable for a range
of secondary uses (leisure use excluded as &
suitable use in Annex 2 of the AAP). Majority
of sile is in Flood Zene 32

In current use {mix of uses including hotel and
retafl). Site availability would be dependant on
existing occupiers relocating o enable the site to
be redeveloped. Also, likely mulliple ownership.

Discount on grounds of suitability, availability
and viebllity.

o

Worcester Street Car Park

Site identified in adopted West End Area
Action Plan (Annex 2) as suitable for public
space and a range of secondary uses (leisure
use excluded as a suitable use in Annex 2 of
the AAP).

tn current use a public car park, Altemative
parking provision may be required

Discourt on grounds of sultability.

PPS 4 Statement 19

© 000000060000 060600606 06060000000606 000 e 00 ¢




14043y

8¢

© 000006006600 6060 666606

Becket Street Car Park

Site identified in adopled West End Area
Action Plan (Annex 2) as suiteble for
residential, transport, office and conference

facilities {leisure use excluded as & sutable
use in Annex 2 of the AAP).

In current use 2 public car park. Alternative
parking provision may be required.

© 60600060 606 06 ¢

Discount on grounds of suitability.

St Aldates 7 Queen Streat

Site identified in-adopted West End Area
Action Plan {Annex 2} as suitable for office.
residential, student accommodation and
museum (other leisure uses excluded as a
suitable use in Annex 2 of the AAP),

In current use for a mix of commercial,
institutional, educationat and residential uses.
Also, application submitted in 2008 for new retall
devetopment, student accommodation and office
use {the proposal is currently on hold subject to
the identification of a suitable development

partner).

Discount on grounds of suttability, availability
and viability.

T

f i)xpéﬁs :

. Sec separate commentery be

Nursery and Osney Warehouse, Osney
Lane and Oxford and Chenwell Vailey
College (OCVC)

Nursery site identified in adopted West End
Area Action Plan {Annex 2) as sultable for
residential type uses (feisure uses excluded
as a suitable use in Annex 2 of the AAP).
Osney Warehouse site is identified in adopied
West End Ares Action Plan (Annex 2) as
suitable for residential use (leisure uses
excluded as a suitable use in Annex 2 of the
AAP).

College site identified in adopted West End
Arez Action Plan (Annex 2) as suitable for
education and pubic space use {leisure uses
excluded as a suitable use in Annex 2 of the
AAPY

The Nursery site is currently occupied by Littie
Scholars Day Nursery, Site availability would be
dependant on existing occupiers relocating o
enable the site 1o be redeveloped.

The Osney Warehouse site is in current use for
car park and depot. Site availability would be
dependant on existing occupiers telocating to
enable the site 1o be redaveloped,

in current use by OCVC. Site availability would
be dependant on existing occupiers relocating (o
enable the site o be redeveloped.

Discount on grounds of suitatility, availability
and viability

PPS 4 Statement 20




140d3d

6¢

13 Westgate Shopping Centre

Site identified in adopted West End Area
Action Plan (Annex 2) 45 suitable for mainly
retail with secondary food and drink and

residential (laisure uses excluded as a
suitable use in Annex 2 of the AAP).  Small
part of site in Flood Zone 3b.

in-current use as'shiopping centre and car
parking. Shopping Centre owners (Land
Securities and the Crown Estate) currently
considering options for developmant and
enhancing the existing retail offer. The Abbey
Place car park {car park west of Norfolk Street)
has planning permission for the: provision of 127
dwetlings.

Discount on grounds of suitability, availability
and viability

Albion Place, Magistrates Court and
Speedwell House, Speedwell Street

-

Albion Place and Magistrates site identified in
edopted West End Area Action Plan (Annex
2) as suitable for a range of secondary uses
including residential, offices, museum and
education {other leisure uses excluded as a
suitable use in Annex 2 of the AAR).
Speedwell House site identified in adopted
West End Area Action Plan (Annex 2) as
suitable for flats and student accommodation
{leisure uses excluded as a suitable use in
Annex 2 of the AAP),

in current use as a magistrates court with
associated parking. Site availability would be
dependant on existing occupiers relocating to
enable the site 1o be redeveioped,

Speedwell Houss is tn current use as offices by
Oxforgshire County Councll. Site avallabifity
would be dependant on existing occupier
relecating to enable the site to be redeveloped.

Discount on greunds of suitability, availability
and viakility

-
o

Wellington Square West

Site not allocated in the adopted development
Plan for any specific use,

Building In current use with ground ficor retail
and residential / office in upper storeys. Site
availability would be dependant on existing
oceupier relocating to enable the site to be
redeveloped

Discount on grounds of avaitability and viability

16 St Cross College Annex

Adopted Local Plan Policy DS.83 allocates
this site a5 only suitable for purpose-built
student accommodation.

Land owned by college and safeguarded for
future student accommeadation / education
related use.

Discount on grounds of suitabifity, availability
and viability

PPS 4 Statement 21

L AN B N E N EEEREEEENNNNNNENENNENENENENNNFNFEEEE




000000OCQOOQO"“GQGQGQOQOOOOOG.QQOQ«

5.1.1 Oxpens, Oxford City Centre

The Oxpens site has been identified by the Council's Planning Officer as the only
reasonable site to be considered in terms of a potential sequentially preferable site
alternative. The site, which is located within the West End of the Gity Centre, is
approximately 7 hectares and is the only site within the West End Area Action Plan
allocated as being acceptable for leisure uses (as part of a wide mix of land uses).
More particularly, Annex 2 of the AAP identifies the following uses as being
acceptable on the Oxpens site:

Primary Housing, Public Space, Commuinity Energy, Public Office, Hotel, Conference, Leisure

Secondary  Amenities for Housing, Offices, Museums

Minor Flats, Food and Drink

it s considered that this site can be discounted as a potential site alternative for
reasons connecled with its suitability and availability / viability, as explained below.

Suitability

In terms of ‘suitability’ thera is general policy support for leisure use at this site, Itis
howaver important to understand the context within which the Policy was drafted.
The main reasoning behind the promotion of leisure at the Oxpens site was in the
context of the expectation that the existing major leisure facility at Oxpens, namely
the lce Rink, would cease {o operate from the site due to the poor physical condition
of the building. Alternative leisure was promoted as a means of ensuring that the site
still retained an element of leisure as part of a much wider land use mix.

Since adoption of the AAP the position in relation to the future of the Ice Rink has
changed however. Considerable investment has recently been made to upgrade the
{facility and extend its operational life for a further circa 12 years, The expectation
that the ice rink will cluse and relocate is no longer the case and as such, it will
continue to provide a major leisure facility on the site for a number of years and
hence, meet the requirements of Policy WE28 of the AAP which requires that
“Opportunities for leisure should continue (o be provided in the Oxpens area”. Other
uses promoted through the AAP as illustrated in the table above, such as housing,
are viewed as being more important to the envisaged comprehenisive regeneration
of this site.

Availability and Viability

In addition to the ice rink, much of the remainder of the Oxpens site is already
developed with uses including: the Oxpens public car park; mix of commercial uses
fronting the ring road including retail, garage and Royal Mail office / depot; range of
business occupiers (including the Oxford Business Centre); and vacant land also
including the Oxpens Field (sometimes referred fo as Oxpens Meadow) to the south
and east of the ice Rink. It is also worthy to note that part of the Oxpens site is within
Flood Zone 3b, including Oxpens Field and also other areas (including smaller plots
of vacant and underutilised land) within the site, Much of the Oxpens Field site will

be required to accommodate flood remediation works and is also currently the
PPS 4 Statement 22

REPORT
30




REPORT

subject of a Town Green application submitted by a local residents association. In
addition to the Council, the other major land owner at Oxpens is the British Rail
Residuary Board and their delivery strategy for the release of land for redevelopment
is uncertain. tn summary, consiraints on bringing forward an appropriate site at
Oxpens, within the timeframe required to deliver the proposed new swimming pool,
impact on the availability of this site.

PPS 4 Statement 23

31

e ¢ ¢ ¢ @ © ¢ © ¢ @06 & ¢ @ © ¢ ¢ @020 090 9




This page is intentionally left blank

32



	Agenda
	5 11/00242/CT3 - New Swimming Pool, Pegasus Road, Blackbird Leys, Oxford.
	Appendix 3 BBL Pool


